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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

‘ The Miami City Hospital Building Number 1, designed by August

Geiger in 1915, is a 7-bay, 2-story Spanish Colonial Revival style
structure. The building, hcowever, has been altered in order to accommodate
changes in its uses throughought the years.

When constructed, the Hospital Building had a 1-story, 7-bay arcade
on the south (main) elevation. The central arch with its detailed archi-
volt and keystone served as the main entrance to the building. The coping
of the parapet of the arcade had alternating panels of bas relief grotesques
and barrel tile. Entrance to any of the first floor south rooms was
attained from the arcade through one of seven palrs of French windows. When
more. office space was needed, all open arches were enclgsed with stuccoed
infill walls and awning windows. The ﬁordh‘waS'théh'tdhvefféd'td'office
space. 1In 1979 when the building was moved, the awning windows were re-
moved.

The second story of the building remains virtually unaltered. Fenes-
tration on this story is 12 over 2 single and double hung sash. The
central and alternating bays are detailed with stucco bas relief spandrels
which separate the second story windows from the superimposed thermal
windows in the same bays. Molded archivolts define these combinations as
single elements. (The original central bay once contained a French window
which has been replaced by the present 9/2 double hung sash). A decorative
stucco frieze below the eaves recmains intact.

The former barrel tile roof with gable parapets is now covered with
asphalt shingles. An octagonal cupola with copper sheathed dome and wood
louvers 1is located at ‘the center of the ridge. T . ‘ :

The side elevations (east and west) are 3-bays wide with projecting
central bays. TFenestration on these clevations 1is regular, 12/2 double
hung sash with the central window on the second story surmounted by a
bas relief tympanum. An applied bas relief frieze continues along the
parapet on the east and west elevations.

The rear (north) elevation is undistinguished.

The interior of this Spanish Colonial Revival structure has been
considerably altered since its construction in 1918. The original plan for
the first floor had intersecting central corridors and partitions .deline-
ating spaces for three offices, a doctor's room, colored and whité waiting
rooms, rest rooms, a linen and sewing room, a clothes locker and . a pharmacy
The sccond floor contained thirteen hospital rooms and two baths -located
at opposite ends of the north side of the corridor. The third floor was
used for storage. The floor plans have bcen altered due to the various

uses of the building; the first floor at prescnt consists of one corridor

(See Centinuation Sheet)
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running east-west with five offices, a chapel, a library, a meeting room,
an examining room and rest rooms. The second floor, arranged similarly
to the original plan, now accommodates three offices, nine rooms for the

house staff, and a full bath.

As noted in the unpublished report on the Alamo by Herschel E. Shepard,
FAIA, "the finishes on the interior of the building have been extensively
modified. A1l original doors have been replaced on the first floor, and
several door locations seem to have been changed. However, at least two
original first floor interior door frames remain. The original south
porch has been enclosed and subdivided into rooms. The original north-
south entrance corridor at the center of the building has been subdivided
by the addition of later doors, but the original plaster vaulted ceiling

remains intact. Most original ceilings are now concealed above later
suspended ceilings, and resilient flooring covers original floor finishes
in most areas. All original terrazo and marble that is visible appears

to be in good condition.”
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Serving Miami and Dade Cdunty continually for 61 years, the Miami .
City Hospital Building Number 1 has reflected and has played a significant
role in the growth and development of Miami since its inceptlon, il 1918. .
The hospital is also an example of the Spanish Colonial Revival style ...
popular in the United States and particularly Florida betwecl the years
1915 and 1930. This style, introduced during the Panama-California
Exposition in 1915, is characterized by low pitch, red tiled roofs, arcaded
verandas and elaborate carved or cast ornamentation.

Miami's first hospital was originally the responsibility of private
organizations. When one such organization, the Dade County llospital
Assoication, owed §874,79 for operating costs of the Friendly Society
Hospital in 1911, they petitioned the City of Miami to take charge of
the hospital.l The City took over the management of and renamed the hos-
pital, at that time iocated on Biscayne Boulevard and Northcast 8th Street,
"The City Hospital."

L T S R e

As the city's population grew, the hospital became inadequate. The
City Board of Health, composed of Drs. James M. Jackson and E. K. Jaudon,
and Mr. Henry Ralston, recommended that the present site of the Jackson
Memorial Hospital be considered for the newly proposed hospif&1-3 This
location, already owned by the city, was used as a dump. A]thOUgh:}ﬂ,1915
the site was considered "way out in the country,'" E. C. Romih, president
of the First National Bank of Miami, envisioned Miami's population at
100,000 and the hospital would then be "in town. "4

After the site had been chosen, scveral architects were asked to
submit plans for the new hospital building. On Dccember 20, 1915, August
Geiger's plans were accepted by the City Commission. Geiger (1888-1908)
by this time had designed the Neva King Cooper School (Miami) and would
later design several other structures in Miami such as the Miami Woman's
Club (1925-1926, National Register) and La Corce Country Ciub (1929?1930).
Geiger designed Building Number 1 (later called "The Alamo' :due to 1ts
resemblance to the Alamo in Texas), to serve as the entrance and adminis-

tration building for an cpen pavillion plan hospital complex.
Twelve acres were cleared for the new hospital site sometime in July

of 1916. Landscaping began on Augnst 8.0 The building was almost complete

(Sec Continuation Shect)
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in 1918 when the city ran out of funds to connect the plumbing hookups.
When the Commanding Officer of Chapman Field Army Gunnery Station, Edward
R. Lindabury, heard of the dilemma, he released civilian personnel and
loaned payroll money to complete the p]umbing.7 The furnishings were
supplied by local lodges of Elks, Masons, and Knights of Columbus.8

On June 25-26, patients were moved from the City Hospital "in town"
to the new City Hospital.9 The Administration Building (Building Number 1)
with consulting rooms, waiting rooms (for both blacks and whites), busi-
ness offices, operating rooms for minor operations, and rest rooms on
the first floor, rooms for white patients on the second and storgae facili-
ties on the third, was also opened in time to accommodate patients who
had contracted influenza during the great epidemic.l0 The hospital was
constantly filled to capacity.

As a result of the Florida "Boom" between the years 1920 and 1925,
five new structures were added to the City Hospital Complex.1l As a
result of this new construction, Building Number 1 served a variety of
uses including: emergency rooms, nurses quarters, laboratories, operating
rooms, on-callresidents housing, departmental offices, personnel offices

and chapel.

’

On February 15, 1933, the Jackson Memorial Hospital (renamed post-
humously for Dr. James M. Jackson, founder of the City Board of Health)
was the center of national attention when a bullet intended for President-
Elect Franklin Delano Roosevelt struck Mayor Anton Cermak of Chicago.l2
The Mayoi was rushed to Jackson Memorial Hospital, where he died on
March 6.13

As Miami continued to grow, so did the Jackson Memorial Hospital
Center. Building Number 1 was dwarfed by the Skaggs Building, which was
built 15 feet south of the building during World War 11.1 Other large
skyscrapers surrounded the building to the extent that Building Number 1
no longer served as the entrance to the hospital complex.

In 1977, Building Number 1 was slated for demolition to make room for
a Maternal Child Care Tower. In order to save the building money was
raised and the structure was moved in 1979, 475 feet southwest of its
original site. It is now situated on the major drive in the hospital
complex where it will again serve as an information and welcoming center.

(See Continuation Sheet)
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
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For further information, please call the National Register at (202)343-840L.
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